ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 25, 2013
1:34 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senator Lesil MQ@ire, Vice Chair
Senator Fred Dyson

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics
H. Connor Thonas

- CONFI R(VATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO 72

"An Act clarifying that the Al aska Bar Association is an agency
for purposes of investigations by the onbudsman; relating to
conpensation of the onbudsman and to enploynent of staff by the
onbudsman under personal service contracts; providing that
certain records of comunications between the onbudsman and an
agency are not public records; relating to disclosure by an
agency to the onbudsman of communications subject to attorney-
client and attorney work-product privileges; relating to
informal and formal reports of opinions and recomendations
issued by the onbudsman; relating to the privilege of the
onbudsman not to testify and creating a privilege under which
the onbudsman is not required to disclose certain docunents;
relating to procedures for procurenment by the onbudsman;
relating to the definition of 'agency' for purposes of the
Onbudsman Act and providing jurisdiction of the onbudsman over
persons providing certain services to the state by contract; and
amendi ng Rul es 501 and 503, Al aska Rul es of Evidence."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 25, 2013



SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 9
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to state aid for education.

- HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 69(JUD)

"An Act exenpting certain firearns, firearm accessories, and
ammunition in this state from federal regulation; declaring
certain federal st at ut es, regul ati ons, rul es, and orders
unconstitutional under the Constitution of the United States and
unenforceable in this state; providing crimnal penalties for
federal officials who enforce or attenpt to enforce a federal
statute, regulation, rule, or order regulating certain firearns
and firearm accessories in this state; and providing for an
effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 72

SHORT TI TLE: OVBUDSMAN
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL BY REQUEST

03/11/13 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/11/13 (S) JUD, FIN

03/ 22/ 13 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 22/ 13 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 25/ 13 (9 JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SJR9

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

02/ 13/ 13 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 13 (S) EDC, JUD

02/ 15/ 13 (S) EDC REFERRAL REMOVED

02/ 15/ 13 (S FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

02/ 15/ 13 (S) UPHOLD CHANGE TO REFERRALS Y11 N4 E4 Al
03/ 13/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 13/ 13 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 15/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 15/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 18/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 18/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 25, 2013



03/ 18/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 20/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 20/ 13 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 22/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 22/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 25/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

H. CONNOR THOVAS, Appoi nt ee

Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

None, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to his
confirmation hearing.

BETH LEI BON TZ, Assistant Onbudsman

O fice of the Orbudsnman

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided infornmation related to SB 72.

STEVE VAN GOOR, Bar Counsel

Al aska Bar Associati on (ABA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 72.

LI NDA LORD- JENKI NS, QOrbudsman

Al aska St ate Onbudsnan

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on SB 72.

MAUREEN VAN WAGNER, Speci al Education Teacher

East Hi gh School

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIJR 9.

TI M PARKER, Teacher

Lat hrop H gh School

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 9.

TODD HEI NVAN, Pri nci pal

Anvil City Science Acadeny (ACSA)

Nonme, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 9.

M KE HANLEY, Conmi ssi oner

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 25, 2013



Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SJR 9.

SENATOR M KE DUNLEAVY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SJR 9.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 34: 05 PM

CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Mc@uire, Dyson, and Chair Coghill. Senators
O son and Welechowski arrived soon thereafter. He explained
that public testinony on HB 69 woul d be held at another tine.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

1:34:59 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the first order of business would
be a confirmation hearing for H Connor Thonmas for the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics.

He noted the arrival of Senator d son.

1: 35: 56 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL requested that M. Thomas explain why he would
like to continue to serve on the Select Commttee on Legislative
Et hi cs.

H  CONNOR THOMAS, Appointee, Select Conmttee on Legislative
Ethics, presented information related to his confirmation
hearing. He related that he has enjoyed serving on this
committee since 1998. It was an opportunity to serve the public.

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that he served with M. Thomas and would
recommend himto the full body for confirmtion.

1: 38: 09 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE thanked M. Thomas for his years of service on
the Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 25, 2013



SENATOR MCGUIRE noved to forward the name H Connor Thomas to
the full legislative body, wth individual reconmendations, to
serve on the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics.

CHAIR COGH LL found no objection and announced that the
coonmittee would forward M. Thomas's nane to the full body for
confirmation. He thanked M. Thomas for his work.

He noted the arrival of Senator W el echowski .

SB 72- OVBUDSMVAN

1:39: 14 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL announced the consideration of SB 72.

BETH LEIBOWTZ, Assistant Onbudsman, Ofice of the Orbudsnman,
i ntroduced herself and stated that Onrbudsman Linda Lord-Jenkins
was available on-line to answer questions. She asked the chair
how he woul d Ii ke her to proceed.

CHAI R COCGHI LL requested an overview of the bill.

M5. LEIBONTZ explained that it has been about 20 years since
the onbudsman's office has had substantive revision to its
enabling legislation. She related that changes need to be nade
to the confidentiality provisions. The first request is to anend
the testinonial privilege to express that the onbudsman's office
does not testify in court, produce docunents, attend
depositions, or go to admnistrative adjudications, except as
necessary to enforce provisions of the Orbudsman Act.

The second request is to have confidentiality extended to
conmuni cations wth the executive branch agencies that are
investigated so that those communications can be taken out of
the public records realm The current statute requires the
onbudsman's office to provide a confidential prelimnary report
to the agency under investigation. The agency cannot release
that report to the public, but there is no simlar prohibition
for all the correspondence leading up to that confidential
report.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if that is found in Sections 4 and 5.
M5. LEIBONTZ said that would be Section 4. Section 5 deals with

attorney/client privilege, and the onbudsman's office does not
have access to attorney/client privileged docunents.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 25, 2013



She restated that the onbudsman's office requests that if an
agency offers material to explain its actions, that information
be held confidential.

M5. LEIBOWTZ said the onbudsman's office is also requesting a
statutory provision that provides for an informal investigative
report - something between a conplaint that is closed as
premature or declined, and a full, formal investigative report
signed by the onbudsman. This request is found in Sections 6
t hrough 9.

She discussed the procurenent statute, which is outdated and
needs to be brought into alignment wth the legislative
procur enent policies.

M5. LEIBONTZ described two personnel housekeeping provision
requests. One is to unfreeze the onbudsman's salary, which is
currently set by statute at Step A Range 26. The onbudsnman's
office is the only legislative agency where the salary is set at
a given range and frozen. The request is that the range is set
at 26, with the ability to nove through the steps.

1:45: 24 PM

The second personnel request is to clarify that the onbudsman's
of fice can hire personal services contract enployees just as the
rest of the legislative branch can. Current statutory | anguage
is not clear regarding that issue.

CHAIR COGHI LL responded favorably to the salary issue
recommendation. He inquired if the bill would take what 1is
currently in place for the legislature and apply it to contract
procedures and the procurenent code for the onbudsman's office.

V5. LEI BOWN TZ agr eed.

1:46: 43 PM
SENATOR OLSON asked why the confidentiality clause needs to be
changed. He asked if there had been probl ens.

M5. LEIBOWNTZ replied that there have been very few problens
but a recent request brought to light that the confidentiality
statute needed clarification.

1:47.54 PM
SENATOR OLSON asked if the onbudsnan's position has been
difficult to fill due to the salary issue.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 25, 2013



M5. LEIBONTZ said she did not think so, but because of term
limts a new onbudsman would have to be appointed in a few
years.

CHAIR COGH LL asked why the range was exenpted from step
I ncreases.

M5. LEIBOWNTZ said she was not sure. She explained the history
of the onbudsman's salary since the Orbudsman Act in 1975. 1In
2001, the Ofice of Victims R ghts was created and the victins
advocate received exactly the sane conpensation as the onbudsman
- Range 26, Step A. Last year, the victimis rights statute was
anended to renove the "Step A" Ilimting |anguage, and the
onbudsman's office is asking for parity.

1:49: 46 PM

M5. LEIBONTZ explained that the bill provides for two areas of
jurisdictional determnation from the legislature. The first is
found in Section 1 and requests a determ nation whether or not
the onbudsman's office is supposed to investigate conplaints
about the Al aska Bar Association (ABA). She explained that the
matter has remai ned unresol ved since 1980 when it first canme up.
She pointed out that the Al aska Onbudsman has jurisdiction over
the admi nistrative portions of the judicial branch. She related
that she has done the analysis used by the Al aska Suprenme Court
to deternmine what is a state agency, and it is not clear if the
ABA is or not. She could not predict what a court would rule
about the ABA's status relative to the Orbudsman Act. She
requested that the |legislature nake the call.

SENATOR MCGUI RE spoke of concerns about changing statute so the
ABA is under the auspices of the onbudsman's office. She asked
what woul d be the nature of an onmbudsman conpl ai nt where access
to ABA records woul d be sought.

M5. LEIBONTZ replied that there were only about a dozen
conplaints against the ABA in the |ast decade. The mmpjority were
from people filing a grievance against their attorney, usually
in a crimnal defense matter. She explained for those cases, in
order to do a full investigation, the onbudsman's office would
have to access ABA records. This would appear to create a
probl em for the onbudsman's office because ABA rules appear to
restrict access.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE asked what trade associations can Dbe
investigated by the onbudsman's office, such as the Al aska

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 25, 2013



Medi cal Association, the Al aska Dental Association, and the
Al aska Nurses Associ ati on.

M5. LEIBONTZ explained that their office does not have
jurisdiction over the aforenmentioned agencies. She stated that
they have jurisdiction over state licensing agencies, such as
the Al aska Medical Board, the Al aska Nursing Board, and nany
occupational licensing boards within the Departnent of Conmerce,
Communi ty and Econom c Devel opnent.

1:54: 38 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL gave an exanple of a person who has trouble with a
medi cal provider, is not satisfied with the nedical board's
review, and takes their conmplaint to the Ofice of the
Onbudsman, who will deal with the conplaint at the board |evel

M5. LEIBONTZ said often the onmbudsman is not able to satisfy
the conplainant because he/she is not able to talk about
confidential material.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked what the onbudsman would do if he/she found
a board operated inproperly.

VB. LEIBOWNTZ said the onbudsman wwuld be able to nmke
recommendations to the nedical board at the division |evel and
at the professional |evel.

CHAIR COGHI LL said that is simlar to the ABA in that they
police their own.

MS. LEIBOWTZ agreed that they act as a |licensing agency.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked what the next recourse was for soneone who
did not agree with an attorney and appealed to the ABA, but was
not satisfied.

M5. LEIBOWNTZ explained that there are several |ayers of review
within the ABA. After that the person can request the Al aska
Suprene Court to review the matter

1:57:18 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL said he understood that dues-paying entities have
oversight by the Al aska Suprene Court. He inquired how the ABA
could be considered a state agency when it does not receive
state funding.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 25, 2013



M5. LEIBONTZ said it was a call the legislature would have to
make. She agreed that the ABA does not receive state funding,
but it does conduct state licensing. The lack of public funding
is one of the factors in favor of the ABA not being considered a
state agency.

CHAIR COGHILL said it creates an interesting conundrum because
| awyers who becone judges are nenbers of the ABA

M5. LEIBONTZ highlighted that the ABA is not a voluntary
associ ati on.

CHAIR COGHI LL conpared it to legislators sitting on the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics.

M5. LEIBOWTZ offered her understanding that three nenbers of
the Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar Association are public
nmenber s appoi nted by the governor.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if there is an avenue other than the
onbudsman to deal with ABA issues; if the ABA is not serving
with integrity, there should be another authority.

M5. LEIBOWN TZ enphasized that it is a matter of clarifying that
the Ofice of the Orbudsman has the authority to investigate the
ABA. She offered to provide the conmttee with the analysis of
the history of the issue and the potential pitfalls regarding
ABA rul es versus the Orbudsman Act.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he would like the information. He requested
M. Van Goor's opinion.

STEVE VAN GOOR, Bar Counsel, Alaska Bar Association (ABA),
agreed with M. Leibowitz's analysis of the ABA' s oversight
abilities. For exanple, if soneone makes a conplaint against a
| awyer, that person can have the ABA's decision reviewed by a
nmenber of the Board of Governors. |If a conplainant still
di sagrees, he/she can appeal to the Alaska Suprene Court. He
added that the bar rules outline a specific path for the
investigation of conplaints and the prosecution of unethical
conduct .

2:02: 49 PM

MR. VAN GOOR spoke of legislative performance audits of the ABA
since 1980, all of which have resulted in a recommendation of
continuation of the ABA as the agency responsible for the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 25, 2013



adm ssion and discipline of |lawers. He stated that the ABA is
responsible to all three branches of state governnent.

He said of the 3,079 conplaints that have cone before the ABA
only a dozen or so nmade it to the onbudsman's office. He spoke
of t he adver se public policy ef f ect if confidenti al
i nvestigations are made public. Lawers would be less candid if
they knew their clients' conplaints could be made public. He
expl ai ned a concern of the Public Defender Agency.

He enphasized that due to privacy concerns, the ABA would have
to take this issue to the Alaska Supreme Court if the provision
were to be adopted. He concluded that the ABA should not be
subject to the Ofice of the Orbudsman.

2:07:20 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL stressed the inportance of the individual's
ability to nake a conplaint and the difficulty for a person to
have to go to the Al aska Suprene Court. He asked for an exanple
of how an individual could have a conpl aint resolved by neans of
due process.

MR. VAN GOOR explained the steps to address conplaints. He said
the two nobst common conplaints are neglect and failure to
communi cate, or "poor custoner service." The first step is to
ensure that the conplaint nmeets the mninmum requirenments. Then
the conplaint is sent to the lawer for a response. The |awyer
may respond and typically does. The ABA nust prove that there is
clear and convincing evidence that there are grounds for the
conplaint. He noted that I|awers often don't realize that
negl ect and failure to communi cate cause nost of the problens.

He related that the next step is that the response from the
| awer is given to the conplainant. Then, the ABA nust decide if
an investigation is warranted. He pointed out that the ABA does

nore than nost jurisdictions and wll provide an explanation to
the client. Sone clients will not be satisfied and wll then
have their files reviewed by the board liaison who will decide

whether an investigation is warranted. Those who are not
satisfied can appeal to the Al aska Suprene Court.

He confirned that appealing to the Al aska Suprene Court is not
easy for the client to do.

2:12: 26 PM

MR. VAN GOOR related that since the Anderson decision, which
gave people the authority to appeal to the Al aska Suprenme Court,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 25, 2013



only about a dozen have done so. After the court accepts the
matter for an original review, the ABA sends the entire file to
the court and responds to the allegations.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked for a definition of "original review' and an
expl anation of what type of issue ends up under an original
revi ew.

MR. VAN GOOR explained that it is an original application found
under the appellate rules that is a request for review by the
court that does not conveniently fall into other categories in
the appellate rules. It is not a direct appeal, a petition for
review, or a petition for a hearing. It is an original matter
subject to the court's authority, in which a person asks the
court to review the actions.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked what types of issues would end up under that
type of review.

MR VAN GOOR said issues such as when a lawer fails to
communicate with a client or neglects a client matter.

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that these would not involve ethical
guestions, rules of procedure, or crimnal behavior.

MR. VAN GOOR clarified that nobst conplaints conme from donestic
rel ati ons cases or from prisoners who conpl ain about ineffective
representation. Under the rules of court, these individuals have
the ability to ask for post-conviction relief, a process in
which representation is reviewed and action can be taken to
address attorney shortcomngs. The individuals often fail to
realize that filing a conplaint usually ends in no relief. The
ABA can take licensing action against a defense |awer, but
cannot affect the outcone of a judgnent.

He explained two things |awers do that are unique to the
prof ession. He discussed ethics issues and rule violations. He
referred to cases in the newspapers that involve conduct that is
clearly wong. He stressed that if a liaison indicates that an
i nvestigation should be opened, it is opened. He noted that the
court has never reversed a decision nade by the ABA

2:19:13 PM

CHAIR COGHILL observed that the ABA is the single place for
credentialing to practice law and yet the state seens to have a
hand in it wthout having full authority.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 25, 2013



2:19: 56 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI di scl osed that he is a nenber of the Al aska
Bar Associ ati on.

CHAIR COGH LL comented that he has served on the Senate

Judiciary Commttee with many nmenbers of the ABA. He noted the
i mportance of ABA nenbership to Al askans.

LINDA LORD-JENKINS, State Orbudsman, O fice of the Onbudsman,
commented that her office is looking for |egislative guidance on
SB 72.

[CHAIR COGHI LL held SB 72 in conmttee.]

SJR 9- CONST. AM EDUCATI ON_FUNDI NG

2:22:19 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the next order of business would be
SJR 9. He noted the commttee heard the bill previously. He said
he invited Conmm ssioner Hanley from the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnment (DEED) back to answer questi ons.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI stated that he has questions for
Comm ssi oner Hanl ey.

[ CHAI R COGHI LL opened public testinony.]

MAUREEN VAN WAGNER, Special Education Teacher, East Hi gh School,
testified in opposition to SJR 9. She gave reasons why the bill
is not good. The base student allocation (BSA) hasn't been
i ncreased since 2010 and teachers are already expected to do
nmore with less. Bills like this will continue that trend and
make her job even nore difficult. She didn't support using
public tax dollars to fund private schools, and she disputed the
notion that voucher progranms actually increase choice.

TIM PARKER, Teacher, Lathrop Hi gh School, testified in
opposition to SJR 9. He talked about how chall enging voucher
prograns would be for the state's education system He
mai ntai ned that research on vouchers does not show that they
increase student performance. He dispelled the idea that
vouchers provide nore school choice. He said Alaska public
school s already provide a trenendous ampunt of choice, and they
accept all students.

MR. PARKER discussed the six principles idea for inproved
st udent | ear ni ng: pr of essi onal | earning conmmunities, peer

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 25, 2013



revi ew, extra time for students, the evaluation system
fam |y/school partnerships, and a rich and varied curriculum He
said that SJIR 9 in its current form and opening the constitution
to include private and religious schools does not neet the
t hreshol d of inproved student | earning.

2:28:54 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked how Monroe, a private school, conpares to
Lat hrup in academ c achi evenent and spendi ng.

MR PARKER said he didn't have that information

2:29:40 PM

TODD HEINMAN, Principal, Anvil City Science Acadeny (ACSA),
testified in opposition to SJIR 9. He said that ACSA is a charter
school that has operated for 15 years and continues to provide
parental choice within the public school system He nmaintained
that using public funds for religious and private educational
institutions wll dilute public dollars and public schoo
students wll be negatively affected.

M KE HANLEY, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED), offered to answer questions related to SJR
9.

2:31: 35 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the state was currently expending
funds unconstitutionally to educational institutions.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said the areas that seened unconstitutiona
were correct ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if it was his opinion that SJR 9
isn't needed because of unconstitutional state nonies being
expended.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said he wuld need clarification about
speci fic expenditures.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI referred to the list of programs in the
sponsor's packet.

CHAI R COGHI LL noted that several prograns such as the Advantage
Schol arship were possi bly outside the conm ssioner's purview.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 25, 2013



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY deferred to l|egal counsel regarding the
Al aska Performance Scholarship and the Alaska Advantage
[ Education Grant].

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he had received |egal advice that
t hose expendi tures are ei t her constitutional or
unconstitutional.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY sai d they have been deened constitutional.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if he was aware of any of the
expenditures being made by the state for educational purposes
t hat are unconstitutional.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said not that he was aware of.

2:33.45 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if the requirements for charter schools to
conply with things |like school size and OSHA standards were put
in through the regul atory process or statute.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said primarily statute. In Al aska, charter
schools are under the unbrella of local school districts and
their organi zation and governance is the same as a traditional
nei ghbor hood school .

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if voucher programs receiving public
monies would be required to conply with OSHA and Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act (I|DEA).

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said he wasn't famliar with OSHA, but they
would have to conply with IDEA requirenments. The courts have
defined in four ways DEED s responsibilities wth regard to
establishing and nmaintaining a system of public education. Those
are oversight and support, creating standards, assessnent for
those standards, and funding. It would be difficult to nmeet the
constitutional obligations if the private institutions didn't
nmeet those accountability neasures. It becones a discussion for

the legislature if this bill noves forward.

2: 36: 55 PM

SENATOR MCQUI RE enphasized that if public funds go into an
educational system of any sort there will be strings attached to

conply with the requirenents of federal |aw and standards.

She asked if he could envision letting public schools erode to
t he point of being nonfunctional.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 25, 2013



COM SSI ONER  HANLEY responded that it's a constitutiona
responsibility to adequately fund and maintain the educationa
system There's a responsibility to neet the needs of al
students.

2:40: 06 PM

SENATOR MCGQUI RE asked about the notion of setting aside a base
anount to neet the constitutional requirenment for public
institutions.

COM SSIONER  HANLEY said it was a possibility, and the
responsibility for funding resides with the | egislature.

2:41: 24 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a private school that accepted
vouchers would be required to accept students with disabilities
or special needs.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said it was a |legal conversation, but
students are owed a free and appropriate public education. |If
public funds go to a private school his expectation was that it
woul d be required to conply with the sane requirenents as public
school s.

CHAIR COGHILL clarified that this wasn't about funding the
schools; the policy question is whether students can take
funding with them Then it's a question of how far the
requi renents can reach, given that funding.

COM SSI ONER HANLEY said that was his wunderstanding and the
reason why things |ike the performance scholarship could go to a
faith-based school. The funding is a function of the students.

2:43: 38 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL said he wanted to nmake sure that all the "what if"
guestions were put on the table and debat ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there was any recourse for
taxpayers who don't want their funding to go to religious
school s.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said he did not know.
CHAIR COGHI LL comrented that there are taxpayers currently who

don't agree with a nunber of things including sex education in
publ i ¢ school s.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 25, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI argued that the state doesn't fund
chur ches.

CHAI R COGHI LL nenti oned secul ar humani sm as a church issue and a
phi | osophy.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI pointed out that the state doesn't fund
organi zed chur ches.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he brought it up as part of the broader
conversati on

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the conm ssioner if he envisioned
placing any parameters on schools that teach particular
religious beliefs.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said he has not considered that yet, but it
woul d be problematic for the state to make such determ nati ons.

2:46: 51 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL requested the sponsor to coment on the "what
ifs. "

SENATOR M KE DUNLEAVY, sponsor SJR 9, said he was happy to talk
about the what ifs for long periods, but that isn't what the
bill is about. He referred to the ruling in Zelman v. Sinmonds-
Harris, which said it was constitutional for noney to go to the
children and the famlies could decide where the child would
recei ve educational services. He described SIR 9 as not being
afraid of hearing what the people of Al aska want. He enphasized
that the constitution and the educational system belongs to the
peopl e and these children belong to their famlies. He said his
intent is not to directly fund religious schools. If people want
a voucher it is better done through a tax credit.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY referred to a letter from |legislative council
and an attorney general report from 2005 about crossing the line
bet ween giving public noney to private and sectarian educati onal
entities. Many people believe this is currently happening. He
cited a correspondence school that allows children to purchase a
course from Brigham Young University and tutorial services at
Sylvan as exanples of potentially crossing the Iline. He
referenced M. Nussbaums testinony during the last hearing
about three U S. Suprenme Court cases and opined that the state
has a choice. He said his intent is to have a broader education
system with public accountability. He said it is the people's

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 25, 2013



constitution and parents are aware of their choices. They do not
need the | egislature to protect them

He referred to a poll that shows that the people of Al aska would
like the opportunity to vote on their constitution regarding
this issue.

2:53:12 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI commented that numerous tinmes the
| egi sl ature has overturned the wll of the people. The nost

recent instance was the cruise ship initiative.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if that was a constitutional anmendnent or
a voter initiative.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI replied that was a voter initiative. The
people voted on the issue, and just a few weeks ago the
| egi sl ature voted to overturn the will of the people.

He asked if nunicipalities and |ocal conmunities would be
required to participate if the state decides to have a voucher
program

SENATOR DUNLEAVY said that is a discussion that would have to
t ake place. Vouchers come in a variety of types and he did not
know i f they follow nunicipal codes.

2:56: 07 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if there is recourse if someone felt
strongly against wusing their public dollars for a religious
institution.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY replied he did not know, but he had not heard
it was a problem in other areas. He cited exanples of a
muni ci pality running water and sewer lines to a church property
and clearing a sidewalk in front of a church.

CHAIR COGHI LL said that if the state gave public funds to the
di rect educational benefit of the student, the real question is
if the state could direct the student or famly choices.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY said that is possible. He reiterated that he is
advocating for an expansion of the public education system where
students and their famlies get to use their education dollars
as they see fit as long as the students pass proficiency tests.

2:58: 24 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 25, 2013



CHAIR COGHILL noted the bill is witten to say, "the direct
educational benefit"” then "as provided by law, " neaning that the
sponsor's expectation is that a set of rules would follow this
di rect educational benefit.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY said absolutely. He talked about a tax credit
bill he was working on which would include private and/or faith-
based educational entities along with a dozen other entities
that are currently receiving tax credits. He maintained that the
bill would show what a "voucher” would |ook |ike. He explained
that he was trying to nmake sure that the mllions of dollars
currently being spent are for things that are constitutional. He
predicted that the future is voucher/tax credit.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he wanted to have a record of debate by the
commttee therefore, he would hold SJR 9 in conmttee until the
next neeting. He closed public testinony.

3:02:12 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmmttee
at 3:02 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 25, 2013



